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I GUILTY PLEA

A. Supnary, of Terms. Pursuant to Rule 11{c)(1)(A) and (B) of the Federal Rules
of Criminal Procedure, the defendant, the attomey for the defendant, and the Government' agree
that the defendant will plcad guilty to Counts One, Thirteen, Fourteen and Twenty-One of the
Superseding Indictment. More specifically, the parties agree as follows:

Count One charges the defendant with Conspiracy to Possess With Intent to Distribute
and Distribute Heroin and Methamphetamine, in violation of Title 21, United States Code,
Section 846.

Count Thirtcen charges the defendant with Distribution of Methamphetamine, in
violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 841(2)(1). |

Count Fourteen charges the defendant with Distribution of Heroin, in violation of
Title 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(1).

Count Twenty-One charges the defendant with Deported Alien Found in the United
States, in violation of Title &, United States Code, Section 1326(a).

Upon acceptance of the defendant’s guilty plea(s), and the defendant’s full comphance
with the other terms of this Agreement, WMM th ~

Govetnment agrees to recommend a sentence within the Guidelines Range. Morcover, the

v.D

‘Government will forego the fling of an Information pursuant to Title 21, United States Code,

Section 851. Defendant acknowledges, agrees and waives objection to the fact that the Court
may consider “relevant conduct” alleged in these dismissed counts in arriving at an appropriate
scntence pursuent to Section 1B1.3 of the Sentencing Guidelines. |
B. Elements of the Crimg. The elements of the crimes to which the defendant is
pleading guilty are as follows:
1. Conspiracy. The defendant is charged in Count One of the Superseding
Indictment with conspiring to pessess with intent to distribute and distribute methamphetamine

and heroin, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 846. The elements of the ctime

ol ah’The word “Government” in this Agreement refers to the United States Atcomey for the District
of Idaho.
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ntent to distribute and distributing methamphelamine and heroin are as

1 || of possessing with i

follows:
First, begimning on or about October, 2001, and coritinuing to on or about

June 13, 2003, there was &n agreement between two Of more persons to commit at lcast one

%econd, the defendant became & metrher of the conspiracy knowing of al Jeast

one of its objects and intending to help accomplish it.

| 3.  Distribution of Controlied Subsiapces. The defendant is charged in
Count Thirteen with distribution of methamphetamine; the defendant ie charged in Count

2
3
a
5| crime as charged in the Superseding Indictment; and
i)
7
B
9

10 | Fourteen with distribution of heroin. The elements of the crime of distribution of heroin and/or

11 | methamphctamine are as follows:
12 First, the defendant knowingly delivered heroin and/or methamphetamine; and

13 Second, the defendant knew that methamphetamine and heroin were controlled

14 || substances or some other prohibited drug.
15 3 dj nited Sigtes. The defendant is charged

16 | in Count Twenty-One with being 2 deported alien that was found in the United States. The

17 § elements of the crime of deported alien found in the United States are as follows:

18 First, the defendant is not a citizen of the United States;
19 Second, the defundant was lawfully deported from the United States; and
20 Third, the defendant reentered the United States without the consent of the

21 | Secretary of the Department of Homeland Security/Bureau of Ymmigration and Customs

22 || Enforcement (DHS/BICE).

23 An alien is 2 person who is not a natural-born or naturalized citizen of the United
24 || Stotes.
25 C. Factual Basis. If this matter wers to proceed to trial, the Government and the

26 | defendant agree that the following facts would he proven beyond & reasonable doubt, which
57 | facts accurately represent the defendant’s readily provable offense conduct. This factual

i
28 | summary is not intended to detail all relevant conduct, or cover all specific offense
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l Usually, tvvﬁ defendants would then de

—

churacteristics, which will be determined by the Court after its consideration of the Presentence

Report. Count One: From the dates of October 2001, to on of about June 13, 2003, the

defendant, along with his co-defendants, agreed and conspired to sell heroin and

methamphetamine in and around southwest Idaho. From a pase of operations and using cellular

telephones, the defendants would receive orders from consutners of controlied substances.

liver the controlled substances as ordered and receive

@ch\m.p-uw

payments. The defendants would drive around southwest 1daho, taking orders and selling until
they ran out of product. The defendants wonld then return 1o the basc of operations to resupply
and dcliver the proceeds to a secure Jocation. Sometimes, a car would be dispatched from the
basc {o resupply and collect the proceeds. Counts Thirteen and Fourteen: On or about
Septeraber 9, 2002, an andercaver detective called a juvenile male co-conspirator and requested
to speak with the co-conspirator’s “boss” to requesta Jower price on an ounce of
methamphetamine. Shortly thereafter, the defendant called the undercover detective and the
two negotiated the price of an ounce of methamphetamine down to $450.00 from the $500.00
quoted by the juvenile. On September 11, 2002, the undercover detective called the defendant
1o confirm that price. On September 12, 2002, the undercover detective called to place his order

of four ounces of metharaphetamine. That afternoon, two “runners,” the juvenile co-conspirator

18 " and an unindicted co-conspirator, arrived at the undercover detective’s apartment in Meridian,

Ldabo, and delivered approximately four (4) ounces of methamphetamine--112 grams of &
mixture containing 26.8 grams pure metharmphetamine--at the price agreed to by the defendant,
SASG.OO per ounce. lmmediately before this meeting, 1law enforcement agents obsarved the two
«runners” meeting with the defendant outside a Mexican restaurant in Meridian, Idaho.

On September 19, 2003, the undercover detective called the defendant and ordered a

24 “ quantity of heroin. Later that afiernaon, the defendant drove the juvenile co-conspirator 10 the

andercover detective’s apartment in Meridian, where the juvenile co-conspirator delivered to
the detective 7.6 grams of heroin, which was packaged in several balloons. The undercover
detective paid $800 for the heroin. The defendant stayed in the vehicle during the transaction

and did not enter the undercover detective’s apartment where the transaction took place.

PLEA AGREEMENT — 4
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The defendant is a native and citizen of Mexico. He was lawfutly deported from the
United States on or about October 8, 1999, He thereafter entered the United States withom

obtaining the express consent of the Secretary of DHS/BICE to reapply for admission to the
United Stales prior to retuming to the United States, whete he remained illegally and without
anihority. The defendant was encountered in the District of Idaho on mahy occasions, including
September 17, 2002, on which date the defendant had a meeting with the undercover detective.

il. SENTENCING FACTORS

1. Conspiracy to possess with intent to digtribute and distribute
methamphetamine and/or heroin, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 846, as
charged in Count One, is punishable by a mandatory mmmmm term of imprisonment of five (5)
years and a maximum term of imprisonment of forty (40} years, a maximum fine of $2,000, 000

a torm of supervised release of at least four (4) years, and a special assessment of $100.00.

2. Disiribution of methamphetamine, i violation of Title 21, United States

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

26
27

Coode, Section 841(a)(1), as charged in Count Thirteen, is punishable by a mandatory minimum
term of imprisonment of five (5) years and 2 maximum term of imprisonment of forty (40)
years, & maximum fine of §2,000,000, a term of supervised release of a least four (4) years, and

a special msﬁmmt of $100.00.

3. Distribution of heroin, in violation of Title 21, United States Code,
Section 841(a)(1), as charged in Count Fourteen, is punishable by & maximum term of
imprisonment of twenty (20) years, a maximum fine of $1,000,{)00, a term of supervised release
of a least three (3) years, and a special assessment of $100.00.

4. Deported alien found in the Urited States, in violation of Title 8, United

States Code, Section 1326(a), as charged in Count Twenty-One, is punishable by a maximum '

25 " term of imprisonment of twenty (20) years, a maximum fine of $250,000, a term of supervised

release of not more than three (3) years, and a special assessment of $1 00.00.

B. mmmmmmﬂldﬁm Defendant understands that defendant

will be sentenced under the Federal Sentencing Guidelines and that: (1) the sentence has not yet

T'LEA AGREEMENT - 5
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¢ ®
been determined by the District Judge; (2) any estumate of the likely sentence received from any
source is & prediction and not a promise, and (3) the District Judge has the final authority to
decide what the sentence will be.

The defendant also understands that the Court will determine the applicable sentencing
factors at sentencing and that the Court’s determination will affect the sentence range under the
Sentencmg Guidclines. While the Court may take the defendant’s cooperation and the
recommendations of the partics into account in determining the sentence 10 be imposed, the
Coun hus complete discretion to impose a sentence other than the sentence recommended,
including the maximum sentence possible for the crimes to which defendant has pled.

C. mmﬂm:ﬂvﬂ&a. The defendant understands that the Court is not

bound fo follow any recomimendations or requests made by the parties. Furthermore, the

i
defendant understands that if the Court refuses to follow such recommendations or requests, the

defendant will not be given the opportunity to withdraw his plea of guilty, under Rule 1 1(e)(2)

of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure.
.. Pursuant to Rule 11(c)(1)(B) of the Federal

Rules of Criminal Procedure, the Government agrees to recommend a sentence within the
Guidelines Range. '
1. Mnﬂbﬂm. Unless the Government learns of new

information to the contraxj*, defendant will be entitled to 2 reduction of two levels in the
combined adjusted offense level, under Section 3B1.1(a) of the Sentencing Guidelines, if the
defendant accepts responsibility for the offense by ;mthﬂﬂ&ﬂﬂlmm—ﬁ
wﬁ_mggng_th__qﬂgnﬁi The Govemment will move for an additional one-level reduction in
the combined offense level, under section 3B1.1(b), if the following conditions ére met: the
defendant qualifies for a decrease under section 3E1.1(a); the offense ig level 16 or greater, and
the defendant has assisted authorities in the investigation or prosecution of his own misconduct
by taking one or more of the following steps: (1) timely providing complete information to the

government conoerning his own involvement in the offense; or (2) timely notifying authorities

PLEA AGREEMENT - 6
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of his intention to cnter a plea of guilty, thereby permitting the government {o avoid preparing

for trial and permitting the Court 10 allocate its resources efficiently.

If, at any time prior 1o impomtmn of sentence, the defendant fails to mect the critaria set

out in Section 3Ei | of the Sentencing Guidelines, or acts in a manmer inconsistent with

accoptance of responsibility, the Government will not make such a recommendation and/or

moticn or, if onc has already been made, it will withdraw the recommendation and/or motion.
The critctia and acts which are inconsistent with acceptance of responsibility include: (1)
failure to admit & complete factual basis for the plea at the time it is entered, or (2) denial of
involvement in the offense, giving conflicting statements about that involvement, or being

untruthful with the Court or Probation Officer, or (3) failure to appear in Court, or (4) engaging

11 || in any additional criminal conduct prior to sentencing, or (5) attempting to withdraw the plea(s).

12
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2, Mmmmmfﬁm“—t The defendant will not

scek a downward departure without first notifying the Government of defendant’s intent to seek

a downward departure and his reagsons and basis therefor, 21 days before sentencing.

E. Fines, Costs. and Restitutiop, Unless the Court determines that the defendant

16 “ wil} not reasonably be able to pay a fine, or that paying a fine will unduly burden any of the

defendant’s dependents, a fine shall be imposed. There is no agreement as to the amount of the

l fine. The Court may also order the defendant fo pay the costs of imprisonment, probation, and

supervised release. In addition to impuéing a fine, the Court, pursuant to Tifle 18, United States
Code, Sections 3563(b)(3), 3583, and 3663-64, and Section 5E1.1 of the Sentencing Guidelines,
may order defendant to pay restitution in an amount equal to the loss caused to any victim(s) of
the ofiense(s) charged in the Superseding Indictment.

. F. Special Agsessment. Dafendgnt will pay a special assessment of $100.00 per
count, in addition to any fine imposed. This assessment will be paid by defendant before |
sentence is imposed, and defendant will furnish a receipt at sentencing. Payment is to be made

to the United States District Court, Clerk’s Office, Federal Building and United States

27| Courthouse, 550 W. Fort Street, Foutth Floor, Boise, ID 83724.

28
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G. Syperviscd Releas¢. Defendant will be sentenced 10 2

release, to be served aftcrlincarceration, of at least four (4) years on Counts One and Thirteen, at

least three (3) yaﬁ:s on Coount Fourteen, and not more than three (3) years on Count Twenty-

One.
The defendant’s term of supervised rejease will be a specific (ie., & determinate)

tetm chosen by the Court at genfencing. The combination of prison time and supervised release

“ is permitted, by law, o exceed the maximum term of incarceration allowed under the gtatute(s)

that defendant is pleading guilty to violating. Violation of any condition of supervised release
may result th defendant being imprisoned for the entire term of supervised release or being

prosecuted for conterpt of court under Title 18, United States Code, Section 401(3).
. The defendant agrees to

12 [| provide all material financial and other information as may be requested by a representative of

the United States Probation Department for their us¢ in preparing a Presentence Report. Failure

to cxecute releases and/or provide such material information as may be required is a violation of

15 " the termis of this Agreement, and will relieve the Government of its obligations as set forth in

this Agreement, and may subject the d:fendaht te an enhancement under Guidelines Section
3C1.1, or provide grounds for an upward departure under Section 5K2.0 of the Sentencing
Guidelines, but will not constitute grounds for withdrawing the plea of guilty.
0L WAIVER OF APPEAL RIGHTS

The defendant is aware that Title 18, United States Code, Section 3742 affords
defendant the right to appeal the sentence jmposed in this case. Acknowledging this, in
cxchange for the other terms of this Agreement, the defendant knowingly and voluntarily gives
up (waives) all appeal rights defendant may have regarding both defendant’s conviction and
sentence, including any restitution or forfeiture order, or to appeal the manner in which the
geptence was irnposed, unless the sentence cxceedslme maximum permitted by statute, or is the
result of an incorrect application of the sentencing guidelines to which the defendant filed &

proper and timely obj ection.

PLEA AGREEMENT - 8
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The defendant is also aware that ﬁthr certain circumstances 8 defendant has the nght to

collaterally challenge defendant’s sentence through a habeas petition such as a motion pursuani

(o Title 28, United States Code, Section 2255. Acknowledging this, in exchange for the other
torms of this Agreement, the defendant knowingly and voluntarily gives up (waives)
defendant’s right to contest defendant’s pleas, conviction, or sentence in any post-conviction
proceeding, including any proceeding auéhurized by Title _28. United States Code, Section 2255,
l except as to an appea] claiming ineffective assistance of counsel based upon facts discovered
aficr the entry of defendant’s guilty pleas.

{f the defendant knowingly violates any of the terms of this agreement, any guiity
plea(s) by the defendant, and any judgrent and/or sentence based thereon, shall remam in full
l force and effect and will sot be the subject of any legal challenge by the defendant on appeal or

collateral attack. _
The defendani firther understands that nothing in this Plea Agreement shall affect the

14 § Government’s right and/or duty to appcal a‘s set forth in Title 18, United States Code,

Section 3742(b).
IV. CONSEQUENCES OF VIOLATING AGREEMENT

A, Mm_ If defendant fails to keep any promise in this
Agreerﬁent or COmmits a new crime, the: Government is relieved of any obligation not to
| prosecute defendant on other charges, i]&dlﬁding any charges dismissed as part of this Plea
Agreement Such charges may be bmught without prior notice. In addition, if the Government

detmnes after sentence is imposed under this Agreement that defendant’s breach of the
Agreement warrants further prosecution, the Government will have the choice between letting
the conviction(s) under this Plea Agreement stand or vacating such conviction(s) so that such
charge(s) may be re-prosecuted as well. If the Government makes its determination before
gsentencing, it may withdraw from thf:Pica Agreemert in its entirety.

The defendant furthcr_understanﬁds and agrees that if defendant does not enter & valid and
acceptahle plea, the Government will n';bve to further continue the trial now set. The defendant

agrees not to contest such a continua:w:é, and agrees that the resulting delay would be

PLEA AGREEMENT - 9
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excluduble time under Title 18, United Statcs Code, Sections 1161, )3HA), or

(0)(8)(A). This continnence will be necessary to allow the Govemment adequate time fo

prepare for trial. -

B. efl t's Wai Righ Defendant agrees that if defendant fails 1o keep
any profmise made in this Agreement, defcudam gives up: (1) the right not to be placed twice in
jeopardy for the offense(s) to which defe;_;daut entered & plea of guilty or which were dismissed
ander this Agreement; (2) any right undé::i- the Constitution and laws of the United States to be
charged or tricd in a more speedy m.anner fot any charge that is brought as a result of
defendant’s failure to keep this Agreement, arid (3) the nght to be charged within the applicable
statute of limitations period for any charge that is bmught gs a result of defendant’s failure to
keep this Agreement, and on which the sltanﬂe of limitations expired after defendant enterad
into this Agreement. . ‘ |

Furthermore, the defendant unde%ﬁfﬁnds that by entering a plea of guilty, if that plea is
acccpted by the Cowrt, there will be no mal and defendant will have waived (given up)
dofendant’s right to a trial as well as 1hquo‘116wing rights associated with a trial: thata
defendant has a right to plead not gujlry.‘it’o the oﬁ'ense(s\ charged against the defendant and to
persist in that plea; that a defendant has the nght to a trial by jury; that at trial the defendant
would be presumed innocent and the guvemmmt would have to prove guik beyond a
reasonable doubt; and that the defendaﬂt would have the right to assistance of counsel for this

defense; the right to see and hear all the wntnesnes and have them cross-examined in defendant’s

|
defense, the right to decline to testify uqles!: defendant voluntarily elected to do so in the

defendant’s own defense, and the right to tha istuance of subpoenas ot compuisory process 1o
compel the attendance of witnesses to téstify in the defendant’s defense, or if the defendant
decided not to testify or put on any ev1de:uce that these facts would not be held against the
defendant. .

The defendant understands that by pleadmg guilty he waives (gives up) all of the rights
set forth above. The defendant undersn}nds that if the defendant enters a plea of guilty, no trial

will, in fact, occur and that the only thing remaining 1o be done in this case is the sentencing

PLEA AGREEMENT - 10
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hearing, at which only matiers concerning; ‘the nature of the sentence 10 be imposed by the Court

are to be heard and decided by the Court.;"_f o
V. MISCELLANEOUS e
A, No Other Terms. This Agreamem mcurpurates the complete understanding

between the parties, and no other promlsas have been made by the Government to the defendant

N or to the attomey for the defendant. Th1s Agreement does not prevent any governmental agency .
from pursuing civil or r adminisirative a.ctmns against defendant or any property. Unless an
f exception to this paragraph is explicitly 8 aet forth elsewhere in this document, this Agreement

does not bind or obligate govcnmcmal anutms nther than the United States Attorney’s Office

ll for the District of Idaho. If requested tq do 50 by the defendant or his counsel, the Government

will bring the defendant’s coopcratwn and plcas to the attention of other prosecuting authorities.

-

on acceptance of this plea Agreement nc'i_i'fiatcr than 5:00 p.m. on September 8, 2003. Itis

. This plea offer is explicitly conditioned

defendant’s sole and complcie rcsponsil}:g;i:li_t%y to notify the U.S. Attorney’s Office of the
acceptance ol this Agreement by the dnte éf:éciﬁed ahove in order for this offer to be effectively
accepted. N
V1. UNITED STATES’ APPROVAL

I have reviewed this matter and ‘t.he Plea Agreement. [ agree on behalf of the United

States that the terms and conditions aat‘f.urth above are appropriate and are in the best interests

| of justice.

iy . - /? jwtjarf/i ’2 do 3
RAFAEL M GOBZALEZ, NATE
Assistant Umﬁ's?a%cﬁt&m ' \

L,
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. ——

[
. H

00/08/2003 13:55 FAX 208 334 1038 Us ATTUE?HEY

g vlo

S R TR TR O
e

oL

| VIL  ACCEPTANCE BY DEFENDANT AND COUNSEL
1 have read, or have had read to mb by an interpreter, and carefully reviewed every part

of this Plea Agreement with my attorney. . ] understand the Agreement and its effect upon the

potential sentence. Furthermore, L have n;hscussed all of my rights with my attomey and 1l

understand those rights. No other pmmi'&_és 'c%r inducements have been made to me, directly or
indirectly, by uny agent of the Gﬂvernmé;;;;lt, mcludmg any Assistant United States Attorney,
conceminy any plea to be cntered in tluacase In addition, no person has, directly or indirectly,
threatened or coerced me to do, or refrmﬁ ﬁ_'d"ﬁl doing, anything in connection with any aspect of
this case, including entering a plea of gmlty I am satisfied with my attorney’s advice and é

representation in this case, Iﬁ"“’;’-"&aﬂsdﬂr > A oknLts - /
PLAEN  ffEmRING 1B and MY CRREAT THRITE onTe o< 9, 2;4.,'

?// (154

Defendant | -y

I have read this Plea Agreementif#n:c‘l‘.haiv; discussed the contents of the agreement with
my client. The Plea Agreement mcurafély nnd completely sets forth the entirety of the
agreement. 1 concur inmy client’s deci:_ef;'ioﬁ. to plead guilty as set forth above.

DATE

rrg\+] 1ploatvd. wpd _ o
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